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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information does not purpdd be complete and is qualifiad its entirety by themore detailed information
contained elsewhere herein.

Balance Sheet Data:

Total asses..
Securities avallable for sale
Loans:
Residential mortgage ........................

Commercial mortgage..........coovvvvveeevnn
COoNSEIUCHION.....o e e
Other ..o

Allowance for loan losses.....................
Deposits... .
Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Stockholdersequity ..........c..ocoeviiiiiiiiinnnn,

Income Statement Data:

Total interest and dividend income ...........
Total interest eXpense..........cocvvevvvviiennnnn.
Net inteest income
Provision for loan losses
OtherinCome ......ccooiii i,
Operating expenses e
Income béore mcometaxes
Income t& provision .............ccoeevveeienenn.
Net iNCOMB ... e e

Earnings per common share:

Financial Ratios:
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Return on average assets.............ccvevvevnnne
Return on average equity.................cooe e,
Average equity to average assets................
Interest rate spread..........ccoooe i ieiiiieeinnnne,
Net yield on average earning assets.............
Dividend payout ratio (basic)
Efficiencyratio...........cooveiiiiiiiii
Cash dividends declared per common share
Book value per common share

At December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In Thousands)

$ 1,127,27¢ $1,017,84! $ 92556( $ 806,190 $ 744,60z

96,68¢ 95,071 96,37¢ 87,38( 77,432

408,60" 385,52« 350,43: 299,86¢ 273,32:

404,34: 383,36! 348,70( 317,16: 299,73¢

42,26¢ 29,06t 23,22¢ 33,31¢ 23,464

1,09C 958 833 79¢ 755

7,51¢ 6,90% 5,737 4,53( 3,925

787,57: 729,96( 631,08 525,33« 441,27¢

247,47 207,58( 222,63¢ 214,99 243,73¢

82,26t 72,73¢€ 65,292 59,82¢ 54,771

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

$ 48,444 $ 46,825 $ 44,79¢ $ 43,30¢ $ 42,101

12,61¢ 15,09¢ 17,59¢ 21,98( 26,07%

35,82¢ 31,72 27,19¢ 21,32¢ 16,02¢

1,10C 1,30C 1,70C 80t 322

1,70C 1,627 2,00¢ 1,66< 1,708

16,09 14,97¢ 14,371 12,12 10,587

20,33¢ 17,07¢ 13,13¢ 10,06t 6,827

8,27: 6,84¢ 5,091 3,78( 2,337

$ 12,062 $ 10,22¢ % 8,045 % 6,28t % 4,490

$ 568 $ 481 $ 3.79 $ 29 $ 2.12

$ 567 $ 481 $ 3.79 $ 29 $ 2.12
1.14% 1.05% 0.93% 0.81% 0.63%

15.32 14.67 12.7¢€ 11.0¢ 8.40

7.44 7.14 7.26 7.3¢ 7.51

3.3€ 3.2C 3.11 2.5z 1.87

3.5C 3.37 3.30 2.8€ 2.33

22.01 24.74 28.7¢€ 35.1¢ 47.64

42.8¢ 44.91 49.2C 52.72 59.69

$ 128 $ 1.1¢ % 1.09 % 1.04 % 1.01

$ 387C $ 3424 % 30.74 $ 282 % 25.85



MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

The following information should be read in conjunction
with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statementstained in this report.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES;
CRITICAL EARNINGS ESTIMATES

The Bank’s consolidated financial statements are prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, or “U.S. GAAP,” including
prevailing practices within the financial services industry. The
preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgments involving significant
estimates and assumptions in the application of certain of its
accounting policies about the effects of matters that are
inherently uncertain. These estimates and assumptions, which
may materially affect the reported amounts of certain assets,
liabilities, revenues and expensese based on information
available as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and changes in this information over time could
materially impact amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements as a result of the use of different estimates
and assumptions. Certain accounting policies, by their nature,
have a greater reliance on the use of estimates and
assumptions and could produce results materially different
from those originally reported.

Based on the sensitivity of financial statement amounts to
the methods, estimates and assumptions underlying reported
amounts, the most significant accounting policy followed by
the Bank has been identified by management as the
determination of the allowance for loan losses. This policy
requires the most subjective or complex judgments and, as
such, could be most subject to revision as new information
becomes available. An understanding of the judgments,
estimates and assumptions undedyihis accounting policy is
essential in order to understand the Bank’s reported financial
condition and results of operations. This accounting policy and
its application in recent periods described in more detail in
the “Provision for Loan Losses” section of this discussion and
analysis and in Notes 1 and 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements contained in this annual replfrtnanagement’s
assumptions and judgments prove to be incorrect and the
allowance for loan losses is inadequate to absorb inherent
losses, or if bank regulatory authorities require the Bank to
increase the allowance for loan losses as a part of their
examination process, the Bank’s earnings and capital could be
significantly and adversely affected.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
COMPARISON OF THE YEARS 2011, 2010 and 2009

For the year-ended December 31, 2011, the Bank earned
$12.1 million as compared to $10.2 million in 2010 and $8.0

million in 2009. On a per-share basis, the Bank earned $5.68
basic and $5.67 diluted in 2011. In 2010 and 2009, the Bank

both basic and diluted. Earg® for 2011 as compared to
2010 were primarily impacted by a $4.1 million increase in net
interest income, offset in part by a $1.1 million increase in
operating expenses and a $1.4 million increase in the income
tax provision. Earnings for 2010 as compared to 2009 were
impacted by a $4.5 million increase in net interest income and
a reduction of $400,000 in the provision for loan losses, offset,
in part, by a reduction of $381,000 in other income, a
$607,000 increase in operating expenses and a $1.8 million
increase in the income tax provision.

Total interest and dividend income increased in 2011
compared to 2010 due to a 9%crease in average interest
earning assets offset by a 23 basis point decrease in the
average yield on earning assets, reflecting market conditions.
Interest expense decreased by 16% due to a 39 basis point
decrease in the average rate paid reflecting a combination of
market conditions and a shift from borrowed funds to lower
cost deposit products offset, in part, by an 8% increase in
average interest bearing liabilitie3.otal interest and dividend
income increased in 2010 compared to 2009 due to a 14%
increase in average interest eagnassets offset by a 47 basis
point decrease in the average yield on earning assets,
reflecting market conditions. Interest expense decreased by
14% due to a 56 basis point decrease in the average rate paid
reflecting a combination of market conditions and a shift from
borrowed funds to lower cost deposit products offset, in part,
by a 13% increase in awage interest bearing liabilities

Other income increased in 2011 by $73,000 from 2010
primarily due an increase of $880 in customer service fees
on deposits. Other income in 2010 compared to 2009
decreased by $381,000 primarily due to gains on the sale of
mortgage loans of $454,000 recorded in 2009. This was
partially offset by an increase of $36,000 in customer service
fees on deposits. During 2009, the Bank sold $25.3 million in
fixed-rate consumer mortgages (with servicing retained) as
part of a strategy to reduce its long-term interest rate risk.
Customer service fees increasadceach of the last two years
primarily due to an increas@ volume associated with the
overall growth in deposit accounts.

Increased operating expensesraveeported for each of
the past three years primarily in the categories of salaries and
employee benefits, occupancydaequipment, foreclosure and
marketing. In 2011, salaries and employee benefits increased
by $523,000 or 6% due to annual salary increases, increased
employee medical insurance expenses, and increased salaries
associated with a new branch opened in the Beacon Hill
section of Boston. Occupancy and equipment expense
increased $248,000 or 19% due to the exmensf the Bank’s
administration building along with the new branch.
Foreclosure expenses increased by $312,000 or 43% due to
writing down the value on other real estate owned along with
the cost to resolve non-performing loans. Marketing expenses
increased by $149,000 or 30% due to promotions associated
with the new branch along with increased marketing efforts to

earned $4.81 per share and $3.79 per share, respectively, for capitalize on opportunities for both lending and deposit

15



MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

growth. Offsetting these increases in 2011 was a decrease in
deposit insurance expense. In 2009, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") charged a eimae
assessment that totaled $405,000 for the Bank along with an
increase in the regular assessment rate. Thisnaiease also
affected the Bank’s 2010 FDIC assessment. Inl12Qhe
FDIC changed the assessment calculation formula which
positively affected the Bank. In 2010, salaries and employee
benefits increased by $656,000 or 9% over 2009 due to
annual salary increases along with employee medical
expenses. Foreclosure expenses increased by $48,000 or 7%
due to the resolution of several large non-performing loans,
and marketing expenses increased by $40,000 or 9% due to
increased marketing efforts to capitalize on opportunities for
both lending and deposit growth. Offsetting these increases in
2010 was a decrease in deposit insurance expense. The
efficiency ratio, a measure of operating expenses as a
percentage of operating income, was 43%, 45% and 49% for
the years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Net Interest Income

The Bank reported $35.8 million in net interest income in
2011 compared to $31.7 million in 2010 and $27.2 million in
2009. Beginning in late 2007, interest rates dropped
dramatically and continued to decline through 2011. The cost
of deposits and borrowings, whielne more susceptible to rate
changes, have dropped dramatically during the last few years,
allowing a large portion of depit and borrowing balances to
reprice to lower rates. In the last year, longer-term rates have
declined and have started toshaa more significant impact on
loan yields. TheBank’syield on average earning assets has
declined during these periods, however, not as fast as the cost
of deposits and borrowings. &mmet yield on average earning
assets increased from 3.30% in 2009 to 3.37% in 2010 and
3.50% in 2011. Additionally, during the same period the Bank
recognized significant increasasloan and deposit balances
contributing to net interest income.

Average total earning assets increased 9% in 2011
compared to 2010 and 14% in 2010 over 2009. The Bank
earned an average yield of 4.74% on its assets in 2011 as
compared to 4.97% in 2010 and 5.44% in 2009. Interest
income is derived from commercial and residential mortgages,
home equity, consumer and commercial loans, the securities
portfolio and short-term investments. Interest income
increased 3% in 2011 over 2010 and 5% in 2010 over 2009,
resulting from continued growth in loans, the most significant
component of assets, accounting for approximately 81% of
average total earning assets in 2011, 80% in 2010 and 84% in
2009. Mortgage loans accounted for more than 99% of
average outstanding loans in eachthe past three years.
Interest income derived from securities and short-term
investments decreased in 2011, as compared to 2010, and in
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2010, as compared to 2009, due to lower market rates. This
category also includes dividends paid on Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) stock. In early2008, the FHLB announced a
capital retention plan and, as such, discontinued the payment
of dividends until early 2011, when the FHLB reinstated the
dividend, albeit at a substantially lower rate. The Bank
maintains $13.4 million in stock at the FHLB and did not
receive any income in 2010 and 2009. In 2011, the Bank
received dividends totaling $39,000.

Non-accrual loans totaled $6.8 million at December 31,
2011 as compared to $5.7 million at December 31, 2010 and
$9.4 million atDecember 31, 2009. Interest income includes
actual payments made on loans classified as non-accrual.
Excluded from interest income is interest not paid on such
loans, which totaled $176,000 for 2011 as compared to
$129,000 for 2010 and $407,000 for 2009.

In response to market conditions, the Bank decreased the
rates it paid on the more volatile of its interest-bearing deposit
accounts in 2011, 2010 and 2009, and in 2011 reduced many
core deposit rates. This exteddperiod of declining deposit
rates allowed most term certificates to roll over at lower rates
and also allowed the Bank to lower rates on money market,
NOW and regular savings accounts to reflect market
conditions. As a result, interest expense paid on deposits
decreased by 17% in 2011 from 2010 and decreased 21% in
2010 from 2009. The average rate paid on certificates of
deposit decreased by 30 basis points in 2011 from 2010 and
decreased 86 basis points in 2010 from 2009. The average rate
paid for money market accounts decreased by 39 basis points
in 2011 from 2010 and decreased 38 basis points in 2010 from
2009. The average rate paid on NOW and regular savings
accounts declined by 5 basis points and 4 basis points,
respectively, in 2011 while the average rates in 2010 and 2009
were the same. Certificates of deposit were 47% of total
deposits at year-end 2011 as compared to 48% at year-end
2010 and 51% at year-end 2009. Given the current economic
environment, management believes it is unlikely that deposit
market rates will rise significantly in 2012 and, as a result, the
low cost of these liabilities is expected to continue for the next
fiscal year.

Interest expense on borrowed funds decreased in 2011 as
compared to 2010 due to decreased market rates. Borrowings
from the FHLB are drawn to fund growth in the loan portfolio.
At December 31, 2011, the weighted average rate on FHLB
borrowings was 1.99% compared to 2.93% at December 31,
2010. The average cost of all borrowings was 2.70% for 2011
as compared to 3.27% for 2010 and 3.41% for 2009. The Bank
continues to see the benefit from low interest rates as new
borrowings are at lower rates than the rates on maturing
advances.
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The following table details changé net interest inane and net yield on average earning assets.

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans........ $ 827,44 $ 47,12¢ 5.70% $ 756,232 $ 44,807 5.93% $ 691,457 $42,134 6.0S%
Commercial loans ......... 40z 24 5.97 261 27 10.34 252 28 11.11
Other loans................ 617 42 6.81 654 44 6.73 518 37 7.14
Total loans (1) (2)... 828,46( 47,191 5.70 757,147 44,87¢ 5.93 692,227 42,199 6.1C
Securities (3) (4)............ 99,88¢ 902 0.90 104,92C 1,524 1.45 85,427 2,120 2.4¢
Shortterm investments anc
certificates of deposit. .. 93,86 351  0.37 79,615 423 053 46,251 479 1.04
Total interest-earning
assets ........oouve 1,022,21! 48,44¢ 4.74 941,682 46,82¢ 4.97 823,905 44,798 5.44
Other assets .............. 35,61: 34,344 42,928
Total assets ........ $ 1,057,82 $ 976,02€ $ 866,833

Liabilities and
stockholders’ equity:
Interest-bearing deposits:

Regular .........ccocoeenees $ 61,44t $ 126 0.21% $ 52,998 $ 133 0.25% $ 46,478 $ 117 0.25%
Money market ............ 246,72t 1,51€ 0.61 223,752 2,24C 1.00 154,034 2,13z 1.3¢
NOW (5) evvvvveennnnnn. 29,26¢ 15 0.05 27,374 27 0.10 28,366 27 0.1C
Term certificates ........ 362,45! 5,094 1.41 334,94¢ 5,72¢ 1.71 313,932 8,05¢ 2.57
Total interest-bearing
deposits............... 699,89 6,751 0.96 639,072 8,12t 1.27 542,810 10,33¢ 1.9C
Borrowed funds ......... 217,32 5,867 2.70 213,13¢ 6,972 3.27 212,841 7,265 3.41
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ............ 917,22: 12,61¢ 1.38 852,21C 15,09¢ 1.77 755,651 17,59¢ 2.3¢
Demand deposits ....... 58,88t 51,034 42,873
Other liabilities ............ 3,00z 3,074 5,338
Stockholders’ equity ..... 78,71¢ 69,708 62,971
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity.. $ 1,057,82 $ 976,02€ $ 866,833
Net interest income........ $ 35,82¢ $ 31,727 $ 27,19¢
Weighted average interest
rate spread ........... 3.36% 3.20% 3.11%

Net yield on average
earning assets (6)....

w
a
3
S

3.37% 3.3C%

(1) Before allowance for loan losses

(2) Includes average non-accrual loans

(3) Excludes the impact of the aage unrealized gain (loss) on securities avaliafor sale
(4) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank stock

(5) Includes mortgagors’ escrow accounts

(6) Net interest income divided byerage total earning assets
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MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

The following table presents informatioegarding changes in interest and dividenddme and interest expense of the Bamkitie years
indicated. For each category, information is provided with respect to changes attributable to changes in rate (changmauitipieel by old

volume) and changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by old rate).

proportionately to the changes due to volume and rate.

The change attributable to both volume andoedeeds al

Years Ended December 31,

2011 Compared to 2010
Increase (Decrease)

2010 Compared to 2009
Increase (Decrease)

Due to Due to
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
(In Thousands)
Interest and dividend income:
Loans ..coi vt e i S 4112 $ (1,799 $ 2,313 $ 3,873 $ (1,193 $ 2,680
SeCUNtieS. . cov it (70) (552) (622) 413 (12,009 (596)
Short-term investments and certificates of depasit 67 (139) (72) 245 (302) (57)
Total interest and dividend income......... 4,109 (2,490 1,619 4,531 (2,504 2,027
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing deposits:
Regulat........oooovii i 36 (43) (7) 16 — 16
Money market..........ccoovi i i i e en 951 (1,675 (724) 799 (691) 108
NOW . i i e e et e e e e 1 (13) (12) Q) 1 —
Term certificateS........ooocvv i vee v e s 803 (1,434 (631) 509 (2,842) (2,333)
Total interest-bearing deposits........... 1,791 (3,165; (1,374) 1,323 (3,532) (2,209)
Borrowed funds.......c.coo i i i, 144 (1,250 (1,106) 10 (302) (292)
Total interest expense.................... 1,935 (4,415 (2,480) 1,333 (3,834) (2,501)
Net interest iNnCOME weevvvvvvviviiiiiviee . $ 2,174 $ 1,925 $ 4,099 $ 3,198 $ 1,330 $ 4,528

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is based on management's
assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.
Management considers historicaharge-offs, loan-to-value
ratios, underlying collateral values, payment history, the size
of the loan portfolio and thesks associated with certain loan
types as well as other factors such as local economic trends,
market conditions and credit concentrations. (Refer to Notes 1
and 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more
details.)

In 2011, the Bank had net loan charge-offs of $489,000
compared to $132,000 in 2010 and $493,000 in 2009. The
Bank continues to closely moaitits non-accrual loans, which
were 0.79% of total loans at Bember 31, 2011 compared to
0.72% at December 31, 2010, and its loans past due greater
than 30 days, which have increased to 1.95% of total loans at
December 31, 2011 as compared to 1.81% at December 31,
2010 and 1.85% at December 31, 2009. The provision for loan
losses for 2011 was $1.1 millias compared to $1.3 million
in 2010 and $1.7 million in 2009. The reduction in 2011 was
due to the resolution of several large non-performing loans.
The Bank continues to be cautious due to continued
deterioration in the housing markets and volatility of
economic indicators. As a percentage of the gross loan
portfolio, the allowance for loan losses was 0.88% for 2011,
0.86% for 2010, and 0.79% for 2009.
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Other Income

Other income was $1.7 million compared to $1.6 million
in 2010 and $2.0 million in 2009. Other income is comprised
of gains on sale of loans, customer service fees, increases in
the cash surrender value of life insurance policies and
miscellaneous income. During 2009, the Bank sold $25.3
million in fixed-rate consumer mortgages (with servicing
retained) producing gains totaling $454,000. During 2011 and
2010, the Bank did not sell wnloans. Fees earned on
customer accounts were $987,000 in 2011, $893,000 in 2010
and $857,000 in 2009. Customer service fee income was
derived primarily from deposit account transaction fees and
ATM/debit card usage fees. The fees reflect an increase in
volume on fee-based transactiahse to the growth in deposit
accounts combined with modest increases in the schedule of
fees. ATM/debit card fees alsccieased due to an increase in
interchange volume.

Also contributing to other income in each of the three
years was the increase in tkash surrender value of life
insurance policies. The Bank held $14.5 million in life
insurance policies at year-end 2011 compared to $14.1 million
at year-end 2010. Income from these assets is fully excludable
from federal income taxes and contributed $450,000 to other
income in 2011, $459,000 in 2010 and $458,000 in 2009. The
policies accrete at a variable rate of interest with minimum
stated guaranteed rates.
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Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses as a percentage of average total
assets were 1.52% for 2011, 1.53% for 2010, and 1.66% for
2009. Although total operating expenses in 2011 increased by
$1.1 million, or 7% over 2010, the net interest margin
increased at a greater rate of 13%.

Salaries and employee benefits continue to be the largest
component of operating expenses at $8.9 million for 2011,
$8.4 million for 2010 and $7.7 million for 2009. Annual merit-
based salary increases, which averaged approximately 7% for
2011 compared to 6% for 2010 and 5% for 2009, accounted
for the majority of the increase in each year. Additionally,

premiums along with a special assessment that amounted to
$405,000 for the Bank. It called for a prepayment of an
estimate for 2010 to 2012 that included an assumption of an
annual increase in insured deppe®f 5% per year, along with

a 3 basis point increase in the assessment rate. In 2010 and
2011, there was no special assessment, however, premiums
increased in 2010 consistent with the announcement. In 2011,
the FDIC changed the calculation from a deposit-based
calculation to an asset-based calculation. This change along
with several other components of the calculation, reduced the
Bank’s assessment in 2011. In both 2010 and 2011, the Bank
has been amortizing the prepayment made in 2009. At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance remaining of the

2011 saw increases in medical insurance expenses associated prepayment was $1.9 million and $2.5 million, respectively.

with greater participation in ¢ plans and an increase in
premiums. Health care benefits, including medical and dental,
rose approximately 13% in 2011 over 2010 and 12% in 2010
over 2009. In both 2011 and 2010, the Bank noted increased
participation in the medical plarttue to the addition of staff
and increased enrollment. s&l impacting salaries and
employee benefits expenses is the Baugkiarantee of death
benefit for certain current and former executive officers. The
expense associated with this liability was $69,000 in 2011
compared to $288,000 in 2010 and $421,000 for 2009. The
higher expense in 2009 was due to the departure of one
executive covered under the plan and the associated escalation
of service cost that totaled $168,000. In 2011, the expense
declined as one executive reached his originally anticipated
retirement age and the service cost was fully recognized.

Data processing expenses were relatively flat between
2011, 2010 and 2009 at $883,000, $853,000 and $859,000,
respectively. The Bank continually performs upgrades to its
information technology infrastructure, however, in 2010 and
2011 the Bank recognized savings when the Bank converted to
a more efficient check processing system in late 2009 that
reduced processing charges and provided for more timely
collection. In 2011, the overall increase was due to higher
volume of transactions, statement rendering charges and ATM
charges due to growth in customer accounts.

Occupancy and equipment expenses increased by 19% in
2011 compared to 2010 duette addition and renovation of
the Bank’'s Administration facilities along with the cost
associated with the Bank’s newest branch inBeacon Hill
section of Boston. Occupancy and equipment expense
decreased by 4% in 2010 compared to 2009 due to several
large purchases in prior years being fully depreciated in 2010.
This category also includes $270,000, $178,000 and $178,000
in rent expenses for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Deposit insurance expenses were $701,000 in 2011,
compared to $1.1 million in 2010 and $1.3 million in 2009.
Deposit insurance expense consists of premiums paid to the
FDIC and the Massachusetts Deposit Insurance FiDi&") .

In 2009, the FDIC announced a significant increase in

Foreclosure expenses inde expenses related to
foreclosing on collateral, maintaining properties, subsequent
write-downs in the value of collateral and any net losses or
gains associated with their disposition. During 2011, total
foreclosure related expensesraeéb1l.0 million, compared to
$726,000 in 2010 and $678,000 in 2009. Expenses in 2011
were primarily comprised of $238,000 in write-downs on
properties and $861,000 in legakal estate taxes, utilities,
insurance and other expensekated to the foreclosure process
and maintaining properties. This was partially offset by
$61,000 in gains on disposal of properties. In 2010, the Bank
wrote down properties by $46,000, and posted expenses
totaling $800,000. These expenses were offset by $120,000 in
gains on the disposal of properties. In 2009, the Bank wrote
down properties by $100,000, paid expenses totaling $512,000
and posted net losses on thke g properties of $66,000.

Marketing expenses were $650,000 in 2011, $501,000 in
2010 and $461,000 in 2009. The increase in 2011 was due to
additional marketing initiatives tpromote the new branch in
the Beacon Hill section of Boston along with continued
marketing concerning the security of full insurance coverage
on deposit balances. Additionally, the Bank has been
promoting competitive deposind loan products and rates.

All other operating expenses were $2.4 million in 2011,
$2.2 million for 2010 and $2.0 million in 2009. Operating
expenses include audit feestaditors’ fees, supplies, postage,
legal fees, bank fees, reporting costs and other items.

Income Taxes

The Bank’s effective tax rate wd®.7% for 2011, 40.1%
for 2010 and 38.8% for 2009. The increase in the effective tax
rate in 2011 and 2010 over 2009 is attributable to the increase
in pre-tax income, placing the Bank in a higher tax bracket.
Additionally, income derived from the Bank’s investment
portfolio along with income derived from the bank-owned life
insurance policies are becoming a lower portion of overall
income. The Bank’s investment securities are held in
Massachusetts security corporations whose earnings are taxed
at lower state rates. Income derived from bank-owned life
insurance policies is tax-exempt.
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BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS
COMPARISON OF THE YEARS 2011 AND 2010

The Bank had total assets of $1.1 billion at December 31,
2011, an increase of $109.4 million, or 11%, from the $1.0
billion million level at year-end 2010.

Loans

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Bank reported net
loans of $849.8 million, or 75% of total assets, and $792.9
million, or 78% of total assets, respectively. In 2011, the Bank
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The portfolio also includes a $3.0 million investment in
the CRA Fund, a mutual fund which invests in securities
which qualify under the Community Reinvestment Act
(“CRA") secuities test. This investment accounted for 3% of
the investment portfolio at December 31, 2011.

At year-end 2011 and 2010, the entire securities portfolio
was classified as available for sale and was carried at fair
value with unrealized gains or losses reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income, a separate component of
stockholders' equity. The net unrealized gain on the portfolio
amounted to $235,000, net of tax effects, at December 31,
2011 as compared to $196,000 at year-end 2010, reflecting
changing market conditions and the remaining maturity of
securities. The fair value of securities fluctuates with the
movement of interest rates and is impacted by maturities.
Generally, during periods ofalling interest rates, the fair
values increase whereas the opposite may hold true during a
rising interest rate environment. However, due to the short-
term nature of the investment portfolio, market value
adjustments lessen as a maturity date gets closer.

As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston,
the Bank is required to holdl Membership Stock Investment
plus an Activity-based Stock Investment which generally
appoximates 5% of the Bank’s borrovga balance. At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, this investment accounted for
1% of total Bank assets. During 2008, the FHLB announced a
capital retention plan whichprevented the Bank from
redeeming its excess stock. At December 31, 2011 and 2010,
the Bank held $13.4 million in FHLB stock. Additionally, in
early 2009, the FHLB announced the suspension of dividends
on its stock and during bott®@9 and 2010 no dividends were
received. Beginning in 2011, the FHLB reinstated the
dividend, albeit at a much lower rate. In 2011, the Bank
received $39,000 in dividends.

The Bank also holds certificates of deposit issued by other
banks. At December 31, 2011, these investments amounted to
$13.4 million, or 1% of total assets, as compared to $13.9
million, or 1% of total assets, at December 31, 2010. In 2008,
the FDIC increased its maximum insurance coverage to
$250,000 per depositor effective through December 31, 2013,
and in 2010 this coverage was made permanent. No single
certificate held by the Bank exceeds this maximum and,
therefore, all are insured in full by the FDIC.

Foreclosed Assets

At December 31, 2011, the Bank held seven properties
totaling $3.6 million compared to four properties totaling $3.6
million at December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2011, the
properties consist of four numercial real estate properties
carried at $3.0 million and three residential properties carried
at $597,000. The Bank is carrying the properties as held for
sale and as such has marked the properties to the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

Other Assets

The Bank held $14.5 million in Bank-owned life
insurance at December 31, 2011 as compared to $14.1 million
at December 31, 2010. The increase in 2011 was attributable
to the increase in the cashrmnder values of the underlying
policies. The policies, which insure the lives of certain current
and former Bank officers, accrete at a variable rate of interest
with minimum stated guaranteed rates. The Bank monitors the
credit ratings of the policy issts and has determined that, at
December 31, 2011, all issuers were rated at or above Bank
guidelines.

Deposits

At December 31, 2011, the Bank held a total of $787.6
million in deposits, an increas# $57.6 million, or 8%, from
the $730.0 million in deposits at year-end 2010. The growth
experienced in 2011 is a continuation of the trend seen during
2010 and was attributable to volatility in the financial markets
as depositors sought the safe haven offered by fully insured
depository institutions. Additionally, the Bank recognized
growth associated with its newest branch in the Beacon Hill
section of Boston, Massachusetts, which opened in late 2011.
Non-certificate deposits, comprised of savings, NOW, money
market, and demand deposit accounts, were $415.3 million at
December 31, 2011 as compared to $377.2 million at year-end
2010, an increase of $38.1 million, or 10%, which was
attributable to growth in money market accounts of $17.1
million, or 7%, in regular savings accounts of $7.4 million, or
13%, and transaction accounts of $13.7 million, or 17%. Non-
certificate deposits comprised 53% of total deposits at
December 31, 2011 as compared to 52% at year-end 2010.
Certificates of deposit were $372.3 million at December 31,
2011 as compared to $352.8 million at year-end 2010.

Primary competition for deposits is other banks and credit
unions in the Bank's market area and on the internet as well as
mutual funds. The Bank's dibj to attract and retain deposits
depends upon satisfaction of depositors' requirements with
respect to insurance, product, rate and service. The Bank
offers traditional deposit products, competitive rates,
convenient branch locations, automated teller machines, debit
cards, telephone banking and internet-based banking for
consumers and commercial account holders. In the fourth
quarter of 2011, the Bank opened a new branch in the Beacon
Hill section of Boston which has, thus far, surpassed
management’s expectations with respect fpodé growth.

Deposits are insured in full through the combination of
the Federal Deposit InsurandCorporation and the Deposit
Insurance Fund of Massachusetts (“DIF”). Generally
separately insured deposit accounts are insured up to $250,000
by the FDIC and deposit balances in excess of this amount are
insured by the DIF. DIF insurance provides an advantage for
the Bank as some competitors cannot offer this coverage.
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Borrowings

The Bank had $247.5 million, or 22% of its assets, in
borrowed funds at December 2011 as compared to $207.6
million, or 20% of total assets, at year-end 2010, representing
an increase of $39.9 million. During 2011, the average
balance of borrowed funds was $217.3 million compared to
$213.1 million in 2010. Generally, borrowings are drawn with
a fixed rate and term; however, at December 31, 2011, $29.0
million, or 12%, can be called by the issuer after an initial
specified term, and an additional $971,000 is subject to
principal amortization over its stated life. At December 31,
2011, 42% of all borrowings will mature within one year as
compared to 32% at December 31, 2010. During 2011, the
Bank refinanced many borrowings at shorter-terms due to the
extremely low interest rate environment and the current
expectation that short-term rates will remain low for an
extended period. The averagaer paid on borrowings held at
year-end 2011 was 1.99%, down from 2.93% at year-end
2010, reflecting a decrease in market interest rates in 2011.

Liquidity, Capital Resources, Off-Balance Sheet
Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

The Bank continually assesses its liquidity position by
forecasting incoming and outgoing cash flows. In some cases,
contractual maturity dates atmsed to anticipate cash flows.
However, when an asset or liability is subject to early
repayment or redemption at the discretion of the issuer or
customer, cash flows can be difficult to predict. Generally,
these prepayment rights are exercised when it is most
financially favorable to the issuer or customer.

The majority of debt securities issued by the U.S.
Treasury or government-sponsored enterprises, or 79% of the
Bank’s investment portfolio, ifixed with respect to rate and
maturity date. Nine securities, or 19%, are subject to
redemption, at par, at the discretion of the issuer and, based on
current market rates, are expected to be redeemed upon their
contractual call dates. Mortgage-backed securities, which
comprise less than 1% of ehportfolio, are subject to
repayment at the discretion of the underlying borrower. The
Bank monitors the trends in prepayment speeds and
anticipates how these factors will impact its liquidity targets.

Investment in FHLB stock is illiquid. Certificates of
deposit held as an investmeate at stated fixed rates and
maturity dates.

Residential loans are suscéito principal repayment at
the discretion of the borrowerCommercial mortgages, while
subject to significant penalties for early repayment in most
cases, can also prepay at bwrower’s discretion. The Bank
experienced an overall prepaymeate in excess of 20% on
its loan portfolio in both 2011 and 2010. For 2012,
prepayment rates are expected to slow as refinancing has
slowed and rates are expected to remain relatively stable.
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The Bank invests in key executive life insurance policies
that are illiquid during the liveof the executives. Such
policies total $14.5 million, or less than 2% of total assets, at
December 31, 2011 as compared to $14.1 million, or less than
2%, at December 31, 2010.

Non-certificate deposit balances can generally be
withdrawn from the Bank at any time. Certificates of deposit,
with predefined maturity dates and subject to early redemption
penalties, can also be withdrawn. The Bank estimates the
volatility of its deposits in light of the general economic
climate and recent actual expegen Over the past 10 years,
deposits have exceeded withdrawals resulting in net cash
inflows from depositors.

Approximately 886 of the Bank’s borrowings are fixed in
terms of maturity. Less than 1% of the borrowings amortize
over their stated lives and the Bank monitors these scheduled
cash outflows. Approximately 12%, or $29.0 million, can be
called for earlier repayment at the discretion of the issuer.
However, in the current economaénvironment, it is unlikely
that all of these borrowings will be called in the near term.

The Bank also monitors its off-balance sheet items. At
December 31, 2011, the Bank had approximately $128.7
million in commitments to extencredit as compared to $88.0
million at December 31, 2010. The Bank also has
commitments for lease obligations and data processing
agreements totaling $1.6 million and $716,000, respectively,
at December 31, 2011.

The Bank takes each of these preceding issues into
consideration when measuring its liquidity position. Specific
measurements include the Bank’s cash flow position frem th
30-day to 90-day horizon, the level of volatile liabilities to
earning assets and loan topdsit ratios. Additionally, the
Bank “shocks” its cash flows by assuming significant cash
outflows in both non-certificate and certificate deposit
balances. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, each measurement
was within predefined Bank guidelines.

To supplement its liquidity position, should the need
arise, the Bank maintains its mbership in the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston where ig eligible to obtain both short
and long-term credit advances. The Bank can borrow up to
approximately $333.6 million toneet its borrowing needs,
based on the Bank's available qualified collateral which
consists primarily of 1-4 family residential mortgages, certain
multifamily residential property, assets held in one of its
securities corporation subsidies and certain commercial
mortgages. Upon specific approval from the FHLB, the Bank
may also pledge other mortgages or other deposit balances as
collateral to secure as much asproximately $166.9 million
in additional borrowings. At December 31, 2011, the Bank
had $247.5 million in advances outstanding. Additionally, the
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Bank has registered with the Federal Reserve Bank to access
their discount window. The Bank may access this line by
assigning assets as collateral.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank had capital of $82.3
million, or 7.3% of total assets, as compared to $72.7 million,
or 7.1%, at December 31, 2010. Total capital is adjusted by
the unrealized gains or losses in the Bank's available-for-sale
securities portfolio and, as such, it is subject to fluctuations
resulting from changes in the market values of its securities
available for sale. At December 31, 2011, the Bank's entire
securities portfolio was classified as available for sale which
had the effect of increasing capital by $235,000. In
comparison, at year-end 2010, capital was increased by
$196,000.

Massachusetts-chartered savings banks that are insured by
the FDIC are subject to minimum capital maintenance
requirements. Regulatory guidelines define the minimum
amount of qualifying capital an institution must maintain as a
percentage of risk-weighted assets and average total assets.
The Bank's ratios exceededhese regulatory capital
requirements in both 2011 and 2010. (Refer to Note 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statents for more details.)

During 2011, the Bank declared dividends of $1.25 per
share which included a $0.26 special dividend declared in the
fourth quarter. In comparison, in 2010, the Bank declared
dividends of $1.19 per share that also included a $0.25 special
dividend. The Bank's dividend payout ratio, which is
calculated by dividing dividends per share by earnings per
share, was 22.01% for 2011 as compared to 24.74% for 2010.

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

The consolidated financial statements and related
consolidated financial data gsented herein have been
prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which generally
requires the measurement fafancial position and operating
results in terms of historical dollars without considering the
changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time
due to inflation. The primary ipact of inflation on operations
of the Bank is reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike
most industrial companies, virtually all the assets and
liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a
financial institution's performance than the effects of general
levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the
same direction or to the same extent as the price of goods and
services.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report may contain statements relating to

future results of the Bank (including certain projections and
business trends) that are considered “forward-looking

statements" as defined in the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Actual results may differ materially from
those projected as a result of certain risks and uncertainties,
including but not limited to changes in political and economic
conditions, interest rate fluctuations, and competitive product
and pricing pressures within the Bank's market, bond market
fluctuations, personal and corporate customers' bankruptcies,
and inflation, as well as other risks and uncertainties.

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The earnings of most banking institutions are exposed to
interest rate risk because their balance sheets, both assets and
liabilities, are predominantly interest bearing. It is the Bank's
objective to minimize, to thelegree prudently possible, its
exposure to interest rate risk, bearing in mind that the Bank,
by its very nature, will always be in the business of taking on
interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is monitored on a quarterly
basis by the Asset Liability Committe¢ ALCO") of the
Bank. The primary tool used by the Bank in managing interest
rate risk is income simulation modeling. Income simulation
modeling measures changes in net interest income by
projecting the future composition of the Bank's balance sheet
and applying different interest rate scenarios.

Management incorporates numerous assumptions into the
simulation model, such as pepnent speeddjalance sheet
growth and deposit elasticity. Generally, rates are assumed to
rise steadily over a twelve-mtin period, and then remain
constant over the remaining period. At December 31, 2011,
the model assumed a 100 and 200 basis point increase in
interest rates where the magnitude of the rate change varies
with the term. For example, dger-term rates are modeled to
change by 60 basis points and short-term rates are modeled to
change by 100 basis points. Timadel estimates that, over a
twenty-four month period, net interest income will decrease
2% if rates rise 100 basis points and will decrease 5% if rates
rise 200 basis points.

The Bank's interest rate risk exposure is believed to be
well managed and within pre-defined limits.

To a significantly lesser degree, the Bank also utilizes
GAP analysis which involves comparing the difference
between interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities that mature
or reprice during a given period of time. However, GAP
analysis does not measure the financial impact of mismatched
assets to liabilities, nor does it measure the velocity at which
assets and liabilities reprice.

At December 31, 2011, loans, as a percent of total earning
assets, were 79% as compared to 81% at the prior year-end.
The composition of the Bank’s liabilities changed such that
interest-bearing deposits to total interest-bearing liabilities
were 74% at year-end 2011, as compared to 78% at the prior
year-end.
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At December 31, 2010, liabilities that reprice within one
year exceeded assets repricing within the same period by
$198.2 million. Short-term market interest rates remained
relatively flat during 2011 but mid- to long-term rates
declined. The Federal Reserve Bank lowered its targeted
Federal Funds rate to near zero in late 2008 and has kept it at
this level over the past three years. The prime lending rate has
also stayed level at 3.25% during the last two years. In 2011,
longer-term rates dropped due to volatility in the stock market
and uncertainty in Europe. The Bank was positively impacted
by the lowering of market interest rates during 2011. The yield
on earning assets declined by 23 basis points. However, the
average rate on funding costs, in the form of deposits and

borrowings, dropped by 39 basis points, contributing $1.9
million, or 47%, of the $4.1 million improvement in net
interest income for 2011.

At December 31, 2011, liabilities that reprice within one
year exceeded assets repricing within the same period by
$147.0 million indicating that the Bank is susceptible to lower
net interest income in the event that market rates rise in 2012.
Due to the anticipated extended period of low rates and the
growth in longer-term certificates of deposits, the Bank
continues to finance a portion of its borrowings at shorter
terms.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank had thiefang contractual obligations outstanding:

Payments Due by Year

(In Thousands)

Less than One to Over Three Over
Total One Year Three Years to Five Years Five Years
Contractual Obligations:

Federal Home Loan Bank advant  $ 247,471 $ 105,000 $ 84,500 $ 22,000 $ 35,971
Certificates of deposit 372,261 276,843 58,519 36,899 —
Data processing agreements (1) 716 229 344 143 —
Lease agreements (2) 1,575 274 546 329 426
Other borrowings 1,107 42 93 104 868

(1) Estimated payments subject taolge based on transaction volume.

(2) Leases contain provisions to pay certain operating expensegsthef which is not included above. Lease commitments are
based on the initial contract term, or longer when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that thé lease v

be renewed.

24



MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

The following tables prest interest-rate sensitive assets diabilities categorizedby expected maturity (or interest rate
adjustment date, if earlier) and wéigd average rates. Expected maturitiesoahs are adjusted for amortization and prepants
of principal. Prepayment speeds rangenfr 0% to 28% depending upon the particulaset category. Generally, adjustable-rate
loans are indexed to Prime and treasury rates and can repriceuas as 200 basis points per year and 600 basis points avéfeth
of the loan. Norcertificate deposits do not have contractual maturities. The tables reflect mamdgernerent assumptionabout

the volatility of such deposits.

December 31, 2011

Maturing or repricing within: One Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years Thereatfter Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Securities (at cost) (1), short-term
investments and certificates of depasit $175,06( $ 44,903 $ 10,56( $ - $ $ $230,52¢
0.70% 1.32% 0.60% — % — % — % 0.81%
Loans:
Fixedrate........coovevviiiiiiineiens $ 51,90¢ $ 39,71C $ 34,95¢ $ 30,542 $ 24,409 $ 68,559 $250,08¢
5.61% 5.43% 5.49% 5.51 % 5.54 % 5.69% 5.57%
Adjustable rate..................oeenes $171,22¢ $117,03( $100,85¢ $ 89,114 $ 73,691 $ 54,29¢ $606,221
5.11% 5.64% 5.59 % 5.55 % 5.27 % 5.26% 5.39%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Non-certificateaccounts ................ $163,23¢ $ 16,045 $ — $ — $ 172,936 $ $352,22(
0.48 % 0.42 — % — % 0.35 % —% 0.41%
Term certificates ...................... $276,84: $ 41,823 $ 16,696 $ 3,528 $ 33,371 $ $372,261
1.00 % 1.37% 1.90 % 2.24 % 2.66 % —% 1.25%
Borrowed funds..............cocviiininnn. $105,14¢ $ 19,654 $ 65,163 $ 10,173 $ 12,184 $ 36,25¢ $248,57¢
0.48 % 2.58 % 3.10% 2.61 % 1.82 % 4.10% 2.01%
December 31, 2010
Maturing or repricing within: One Year 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 3-4 Years 4-5 Years Thereafter Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Securities (at cost) (1), short-term
investments and certificates of depasit $113,33¢ $ 61,56€ $ 8,73€ $ - $ $ $ 183,63¢
1.51% 1.62% 1.02% — % — % — % 1.30%
Loans:
Fixedrate........coovevviviiiiinenens $ 44,517 $ 35,10¢ $ 29,682 $ 26,70€ $ 25,381 $ 79,917 $ 241,31z
6.08 % 5.84% 5.78% 5.79 % 5.81 % 5.88% 5.88%
Adjustable rate.................o.oee.l $154,671 $ 91,55¢ $ 80,507 $ 74,232 $ 71,699 $ 84,927 $ 557,59¢
5.72% 6.08 % 5.90 % 5.79 % 5.63 % 5.42% 5.76 %
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Non-certificateaccounts ............... $151,15¢ $ 13,852 $ — $ — $ 158,639 $ $ 323,64¢
0.91% 0.74 % — % — % 0.32 % —% 0.61%
Term certificates .............cc.ceenen. $292,931 $47,386 $ 7,197 $ 2,751 $ 2,504 $ $ 352,77¢
1.42 % 1.83% 2.67% 2.89 % 2.46 % —% 1.52%
Borrowed funds...............ocviininnn. $ 66,64C $14,148 $ 18,158 $ 63,167 $ 10,177 $ 36,437 $ 208,727
240% ] 2.23% 2.72% 3.14 % 2.61 % 411
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hingham Institution for Savings:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Hingham Institution for Savings and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2011. We also have audited the Bank’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
Hingham Institution for Savings' management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assertion of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Bank's

internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits of the financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance
with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of the financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation of reliable
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. An
entity’s internal control over financia reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the entity; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management

27



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

28

and those charged with governance; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or timely detection
and correction, of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Hingham Institution for Savings and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, Hingham Institution for Savings maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—ntegrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

%&fﬂ/f M,/‘?G-

Boston, Massachusetts
March 6, 2012




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
December 31,
2011 2010
(In Thousands)
Cash and due from DANKS .......oviiriit it e e e e e e e e $ 8,918 $ 6,298
ShOIt-tE M INVESIMENES ..ttt it e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eas 107,422 61,566
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.cooieiii i e e e 116,340 67,864
Certificales Of AEPOSIT. .. ... et e e e e e 13,405 13,929
Securitiesavailable for sale, at fairvalue ..........cooiiiiiiii i 96,689 95,071
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, at COSt  .....ovvviriiiiiiie e e e e 13,373 13,373
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses
of $7,516,000 in 2011 and $6,905,000 in 2010 .......ccveviviiirineiiiie e, 849,776 792,910
FOrECIOSEa ASSEIS ..ottt ittt e e e e e e e e 3,629 3,559
Bank-owned life INSUFANCE  .....ooviiniii i e e e e e e e e e e e 14,524 14,074
Premisesand equipment, NEL .........ci oot e e e e e 10,597 7,985
Accrued interest recaivable ...t 2,858 2,992
Prepaid FDIC @SSESSIMENT ... ... ettt ee et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e eneeaes 1,871 2,474
Deferred income tax aSset, NEL .......ivvi it e e e e e 3,425 2,803
BI] = LI F3=] $ 1,127,276 $ 1,017,845

LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

7 001
Federal Home Loan Bank adVanCesS ...........c.oeverieiiniiiie e e e e e
MOrtgage PAYADIE ... ..cu et
MoOrtgagors' €SCrOW 8CCOUNES ..........euenon e ee e e et e e e e ee e e e e e
Accrued interest payable ...
Other [1aDITTIES. .. et e e e e e e e e e e

Total HabilitieS ... ...

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value,
2,500,000 shares authorized, NONE ISSUE ..........cuvieiieiiiiiiie e e,
Common stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares
authorized; 2,125,750 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and
2,124,250 at December 31, 2010  ...oieiiii
Additional paid-in capital ...
Undivided profitS ..o
Accumulated other comprehensiveinCome  .......coovvveveeviineieciieeeeen e
Total stockholders’ equity  .....oieieie i,
Tota liabilities and stockholders' equity — .......covoeiiii i

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 787,573
247,471
1,107

2,517

475

5,868

1,045,011

2,126
10,500
69,404

235

82,265
S L121.276

$ 729,960
207,580
1,147

2,344

591

3,487

945,109

2,124
10,417
59,999

196

72,736
S 1017845
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Interest and dividend income:
LOBNS ..ot
Debt SECUMLIES .ot e e e
EQUILY SECUMTIES. .. oev e et et e e e e
Short-term investments and certificates of deposit ................coeeviienes
Total interest and dividend iNCOMe ..........coveiiiiiiie i
Interest expense:
DBPOSIES. . et ettt et e et et e e
Federal Home Loan Bank adVanCes .............coeovieeiiiieeininiieeciinees
Mortgage payable ...
Total INtEreSt EXPENSE ... vuee it e vttt et et e e e e aeeee

NEt INEErESE INCOME ...u et e e e e e e e e
Provision for 10an 10SSES .......c.ei i
Net interest income, after provision for loan losses .............cccovvvinenn.n.
Other income:
Customer service fees on depPositS......ovveeii i
Increase in Bank-owned life inSurance.............coovvviviiii i e e,
Gainonsales 0f 10aNS, NEL.... ..ot e
MISCEIHANEOUS ... ettt e e e e e e
Total Other INCOME ... e e
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits ..........coooiiii i
(D Y o] (001> oo PP
Occupancy and equipment PP
DEPOSIt INSUFANCE ..t ettt e e et et e et e et e e e
FOTECIOSUNE. .. ettt e e e e e e e e
MarkEting . ..ot e s
Other general and administrative ............cccooiiii i e
Total OpErating EXPENSES. .. ... v e et et et et e e e e e ee e e

INCome before INCOME tAXES  ...inerie it it e e e e e e e aaeens
INCOMETAX PrOVISION ... .ves e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
[N L AT 17 1 =N

Earnings per common share:
BaSIC e

DIULEA .. e e e

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)
$ 47,191 $ 44,878 $ 42,199
749 1,418 2,003
153 106 117
351 423 479
48,444 46,825 44,798
6,751 8,125 10,334
5,799 6,903 7,193
68 70 72
12,618 15,098 17,599
35,826 31,727 27,199
1,100 1,300 1,700
34,726 30,427 25,499
987 893 857
450 459 458
— — 454
263 275 239
1,700 1,627 2,008
8,894 8,371 7,715
883 853 859
1,528 1,280 1,333
701 1,074 1,335
1,038 726 678
650 501 461
2,397 2,173 1,990
16,091 14,978 14,371
20,335 17,076 13,136
8,273 6,848 5,091
$ 12,062 $ 10,228 $ 8,045
$ 5.68 $ 4.81 3.79
$ 5.67 $ 4.81 3.79




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-in Undivided Comprehensive Stockholders
Stock Capital Profits Income Equity
(In Thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2008...........c......... $ 2122 $ 10,364 $ 46,569 $ 770 $ 59,825
Comprehensive income:
Net INCOME... .ot e — — 8,045 — 8,045
Net unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of
tax effect.......ccoooviiiiii — — — (312) (312)
Total comprehensive income ............ 7,733
Stock options exercised, including
tax benefit of $12,000 ........ccovieiiinnnn.n. 2 48 — —_ 50
Cash dividends declared-common
($1.09 pershare)  ....ovvviiiiiii i — — (2,315) — (2,315)
Balance at December 31, 2009 .................. 2,124 10,412 52,299 458 65,293
Comprehensive income:
NEt INCOME .oivi it e — — 10,228 — 10,228
Net unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of
taxeffect .....ooovveiiii — — — (262) (262)
Total comprehensive income ......... 9,966
Share-based compensation ........................ — 5 — — 5
Cash dividends declared-common
($1.19 pershare) ....covvviiiii — — (2,528) — (2,528)
Balance at December 31, 2010..................... 2,124 10,417 59,999 196 72,736
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ..o i — — 12,062 — 12,062
Net unrealized gain on securities
available for sale, net of
taxeffect ....oovviiiiii — — — 39 39
Total comprehensive income ......... 12,101
Stock options exercised, including
tax benefit of $10,000 .........coovviiinnnnnn. 2 53 — — 55
Share-based compensation ........................ — 30 — — 30
Cash dividends declared-common
($1.25 pershare)  ...ocveevveeiiiiie e — — (2,657) — (2,657)
Balance at December 31, 2011 .................. $ 2,126 $ 10,500 $ 69,404 $ 235 $ 82,265

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NN T 0 3PP
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(concluded)

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:

INCIease iN AEPOSIES ... ieiueii it it et et e e e e e e e e $ 57613 $ 98,873 $ 105,753
Increase in MOrtgagors' SCrOW aCCOUNTS ... .ivvv.cvueeeieeeeniee e veteee et ienaeeaeneneneeanens 173 376 217
Proceeds from Stock Options EXErCiSEd ........cueeirsiiiie s viiee e e e e e e e 45 — 38
Cash dividends paid on COMMON SLOCK .........ueeine it e e e e e ee e (2,613) (2,443) (2,272)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation arrangements .................cceeeee. 10 — 12
Net repayments of borrowings with maturities of less than three months  .................. — — (25,000)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances with maturities
Of three MONES OF MOTE ... et e e e e e e e e e e 151,500 47,000 135,000
Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances with maturities
of three MONthS O MOKE ... e e e (111,609) (62,056) (102,358)
Repayment of mortgage payable ... (40) (37) (35)
Net cash provided by financing activities ...........ccooviiiiii i s 95,079 81,713 111,355
Net change in cash and cash equIvalents. ... ..o e, 48,476 15,227 32,419
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Year ..........c.ooeiiiiiiiiie e 67,864 52,637 20,218
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 116,340 $ 67,864 $ 52,637
Supplementary information:
Interest paid 0N depoSIt ACCOUNTS .......v.visiieie et e ee e e et e ee e et e vea e ee e $ 6,768 $ 8,141 $ 10,327
Interest paid on borrowed fUNAS .......ooiie i e 5,966 7,079 7,250
INCOME TAXES PAIH ...t eee it e et e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e re e e 8,727 7,714 5,648
Non-cash activities:
Real estate acquired through foreclosure .............cccoiiiiiiiiiiii i e e, $ 2,107 $ 6,951 $ 5,134

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hingham Institution for Savings ("Bank") and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Hingham Securities Corporation 11 and Hingham Unpledged Securities Corporation, which hold title to
certain securities available for sale, and Dunbar-Walnut, LLC and Taunton Oak Street, LLC which hold certain foreclosed
properties. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are susceptible to significant
change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of foreclosed assets and
the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Business and operating segments

The Bank provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through its ten offices in Boston
and southeastern Massachusetts. Its primary deposit products are savings, checking, and term certificate accounts, and its
primary lending products are residential and commercial mortgage loans.

Management evaluates the Bank’'s performance and allocates resources based on a single segment concept.
Accordingly, there are no separately identified operating segments for which discrete financial information is available. The
Bank does not derive revenues from, or have assets located in foreign countries, nor does it derive revenues from any single
customer that represents 10% or more of the Bank’ stotal revenues.

Fair value hierarchy
The Bank groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the
assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value, as follows:

Level 1 — Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and
liabilities generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations are obtained
from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose
value is determined using unobservable inputs to pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar
techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or
estimation.

Transfers between levels are recognized at the end of a reporting period, if applicable.

Reclassification
Certain amounts in the 2010 and 2009 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011
presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts due from banks and short-term investments which mature within ninety
days at the date of purchase and are carried at cost. At December 31, 2011, the Bank had a concentration of cash on deposit
at the Federal Reserve Bank amounting to $108.9 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Certificates of deposit

Certificates of deposit are purchased from FDIC-insured depository institutions in amounts not to exceed $250,000 per
institution, including accrued interest, and have original maturities greater than ninety days. Certificates of deposit are
carried at cost.

Securities available for sale

Securities are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, after tax
effects, excluded from earnings and reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a separate component of
stockholders equity. The fair values are obtained from an independent pricing service and from the Bank’s safekeeping
agent. The Bank compares fair values from the two independent sources to ensure that pricing is accurate.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the
securities. Gains and losses on disposition of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific
identification method.

Each reporting period, the Bank evaluates all securities with a decline in fair value below the amortized cost to
determine whether or not the impairment is deemed to be other than temporary (“OTTI").

OTTI is required to be recognized if (1) the Bank intends to sell the security; (2) it is “more likely than not” that the
Bank will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) for debt securities, the present
value of expected cash flows is not sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis. Marketable equity securities are
evaluated for OTTI based on the severity and duration of the impairment and, if deemed to be other than temporary, the
declines in fair value are reflected in earnings as realized losses. For impaired debt securities that the Bank intends to sell,
or more likely than not will be required to sell, the full amount of the depreciation is recognized as OTTI through earnings.
For all other impaired debt securities, credit-related OTT] is recognized through earnings and non-credit related OTTI is
recognized in other comprehensive income, net of applicable taxes.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

The Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system, is required to maintain an investment in
capital stock of the FHLB. Based on redemption provisions of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is
carried at cost. At its discretion, the FHLB may declare dividends on the stock. The Bank reviews for impairment based on
the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the FHLB stock. As of December 31, 2011, no impairment has been
recognized.

Loans

The Bank’s loan portfolio includes residential real estate, commercial real estate, construction, home equity,
commercial and consumer segments. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is secured by real estate in the southeastern
Massachusetts area. The ability of the Bank's debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate,
construction, and general economic conditions.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are
reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and net
deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees,
net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the
interest method.

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time a loan is 90 days past due unless
the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Personal loans are typically charged off no later than becoming 180
days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or
charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged off is reversed against interest
income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to
accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought
current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses
charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan
balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management. This evaluation is inherently subjective
as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. The allowance
consists of general and allocated loss components, as further discussed below.

General component

The general component of the allowance for loan losses is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors stratified by the following loan segments: residential real estate, commercial real estate, construction, commercial,
home equity (equity lines of credit and second mortgages) and consumer (personal installment and revolving credit).
Management uses a rolling average of historical losses based on a time frame (currently two years) appropriate to capture
relevant loss data for each loan segment. This historical loss factor is adjusted for the following qualitative factors:
levels/trends in delinquencies; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects of changes in risk selection and underwriting
standards and other changes in lending policies, procedures and practices; experience/ability/depth of lending management
and staff; and national and local economic trends and conditions. There were no changes in the Bank’s policies or
methodology pertaining to the general component of the allowance for loan losses during 2011.

The qualitative factors are determined based on the various risk characteristics of each loan segment. Risk
characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment are as follows:

Residential real estate — The Bank generally does not originate loans with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 80 percent
(without private mortgage insurance) and does not grant sub-prime loans. All loans in this segment are collateralized by
owner-occupied residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the individual borrower. The
overall health of the economy, including unemployment rates and housing prices, will have an effect on the credit quality in
this segment.

Commercial real estate — Loans in this segment are primarily secured by income-producing properties throughout
Massachusetts. The underlying cash flows generated by the properties are adversely impacted by a downturn in the
economy as evidenced by increased vacancy rates which, in turn, will have an effect on the credit quality in this segment.
Management obtains rent rolls annually and continually monitors the cash flows of these loans.

Construction — Loans in this segment include both owner-occupied and speculative real estate development loans for which
payment is derived from sale of the property. Credit risk is affected by cost overruns, time to sell at an adequate price, the
overall health of the economy and market conditions.

Home equity — Loans in this segment are generally collateralized by residential real estate and repayment is dependent on
the credit quality of the individual borrower. The Bank generally does not originate loans with combined loan-to-value
ratios greater than 70%.

Commercial — Loans in this segment are made to businesses and are generally secured by assets of the business. Repayment
is expected from the cash flows of the business. A weakened economy, and resultant decreased consumer spending, will
have an effect on the credit quality in this segment.

Consumer — Loans in this segment are generally unsecured and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the
individual borrower.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Allocated component

The allocated component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan
basis for residential, commercial, commercial real estate, construction and home equity loans by either the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. An allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value) of the impaired loan
is lower than the carrying value of that loan.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that a creditor will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Impaired loans are generally maintained on a non-accrual basis. Factors considered by management in
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not
classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-
case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of
the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’'s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Substantially al of the Bank’s loans which are identified as impaired are
measured by the fair value of existing collateral. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively
evaluated for impairment.

The Bank periodically may agree to modify the contractual terms of loans. When a loan is modified and a concession is
made to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty, the modification is considered a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR").
All TDRs are initially classified as impaired.

Foreclosed assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value, less cost
to sell, at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically
performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue
and expenses from operations, changes in the valuation allowance and any direct write-downs are included in foreclosure
expenses.

Bank-owned life insurance

Bank-owned life insurance policies are reflected on the consolidated balance sheet at cash surrender value. Changes in
cash surrender value are reflected in other income on the consolidated statement of income and are not subject to income
taxes.

Premises and equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the expected terms of the leases if
shorter. Expected terms include lease option periods to the extent that the exercise of such options is reasonably assured. It
is general practice to charge the cost of maintenance and repairs to earnings when incurred; major expenditures for
betterments are capitalized and depreciated.

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of an entire financial asset, a group of entire financial assets, or a participating interest in an entire financial
asset are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is
deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the transferee obtains the right to
pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

During the normal course of business, the Bank may transfer a portion of a financial asset; for example, a participation
loan. In order to be eligible for sales treatment, the transfer of the portion of the loan must meet the criteria of a
participating interest. If it does not meet the criteria of a participating interest, the transfer must be accounted for as a
secured borrowing. In order to meet the criteria for a participating interest, all cash flows from the loan must be divided
proportionately, the rights of each loan holder must have the same priority, the loan holders must have no recourse to the
transferor other than standard representations and warranties, and no loan holder has the right to pledge or exchange the
entire loan.

Income taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this
method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between
the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax
rates and laws. A valuation allowance is established against deferred tax assets when, based upon the available evidence
including historical and projected taxable income, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. The Bank has no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2011. The Bank records interest and penalties as
part of income tax expense. No interest or penalties were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Stock compensation plans
The Bank has two fixed stock option plans as more fully described in Note 12.

The Bank measures and recognizes compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions based on the grant-
date fair value of the equity instruments issued. Share-based compensation is recognized over the period the employee is
required to provide services for the award. The Bank uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair
value of stock options granted.

Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share represent income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that
would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Bank relate solely to
outstanding stock options and are determined using the treasury stock method.

Earnings per common share have been computed based on the following:
Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Average number of common shares outstanding used to

calculate basic earnings Per Share ..........coevevii i 2,125 2,124 2,124
Effect of dilutive OPLIONS ... ee e 1 1 —
Average number of common shares outstanding used to

calculate diluted earnings per COMmMON SNAre  .......ccoviveiieeiiee e ieiee e e 2,126 2,125 2,124

Options for 4,500 and 3,000 shares were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so
would have been antidilutive for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2009, respectively. There were no
anti-dilutive options for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Comprehensive income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income.
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, are
reported as a separate component of the stockholders' equity section of the consolidated balance sheet, such items, along
with net income, are components of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The components of other comprehensive income (loss), and related tax effects, are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)
Net unnrealized holding gains (losses) on available—for—sale securities ...... $ 65 $ (401) $ (481)
TaX BT Ot e e (26) 139 169
Net-0f-1aX aMOUNT ... ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e eee e $ 39 $ (262) $ (312

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, accumulated other comprehensive income relates to unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities of $366,000 and $301,000, respectively, net of tax effects of $131,000 and $105,000, respectively.

Marketing costs
Marketing costs are expensed as incurred.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In July 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2010-20, Receivables (Topic 310), Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for
Credit Losses. This Update requires an entity to provide disclosures that facilitate a financial statement user’s evaluation of
(2) the nature of credit risk inherent in the entity’s loan portfolio, (2) how that risk is analyzed and assessed in arriving at
the allowance for loan and lease losses, and (3) the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for loan and
lease losses. For public entities, the disclosures as of the end of a reporting period were effective for interim and annual
reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2010. The disclosures about activity that occurs during a reporting
period are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The Bank has
provided the required disclosures in Note 4.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-02, Receivables (Topic 310), A Creditor’s Determination of Whether a
Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restructuring. This Update provides additional guidance and clarification to help
creditors in determining whether a creditor has granted a co
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820), Amendments to Achieve Common
Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The Update clarifies and expands the
disclosures pertaining to unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements, including the disclosure of
quantitative information related to (1) the valuation processes used, (2) the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to
changes in unobservable inputs and the interrelationships between those unobservable inputs, and (3) use of a nonfinancial
asset in a way that differs from the asset’s highest and best use. The Update also requires, for public entities, disclosure of
the level within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position but for which the fair value is disclosed. The amendments in this Update are to be applied prospectively. For public
entities, the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Bank
does not expect this pronouncement to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220), Presentation of Comprehensive
Income. This Update amends the disclosure requirements for the presentation of comprehensive income. The amended
guidance eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive income (OCI) as part of the statement of
changes in stockholders’ equity. Under the amended guidance, all changes in OCI are to be presented either in a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive financial statements. The changes, as
amended by ASU 2011-12, are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, ending after December 15,
2011, with retrospective application required. There will be no impact on the Bank’s consolidated financial results as the
amendments relate only to changes in financial statement presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2010

Debt securities:

Government-sponsored enterprises \FHLMC ............... $ 16,775 $ 34 $ 3 $ 16,806
Government-sponsored enterprises —FNMA  ............... 32,307 82 (24) 32,365
Government-sponsored enterprises — Other .................. 42,452 176 (11) 42,617
Residential mortgage-backed ..o, 236 3 — 239
Total debt securities  .......oooiiiiiiiiii 91,770 295 (38) 92,027

EQUItY SECUMLIES ... vttt e 3,000 44 — 3,044
Total securities available forsale  ..................... 94,770 339 (38) 95,071

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, debt securities with a fair value of $93,551,000 and $92,027,000, respectively, were
pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank advances. See Note 8.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2011 are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because of prepayments and scheduled payments on mortgage-
backed securities. Further, certain obligors have the right to call bonds and obligations without prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(In Thousands)

Bonds and obligations:

WL L YBAI ettt e e e e e et et e e e e et e e $ 43,162 $ 43,259
(@Y= YT T g (oYL | £ P 49,964 50,091
93,126 93,350

Residential mortgage-backed securities:
OVEr 5 YEArS 10 L0 YBAIS  1uiiut ittt ettt e vt et e e e et et et et v e aes v e e e e aee e 110 113
L@ 1= YT 1 87 88
197 201
Total debt SECUILIES. ... e e e $ 93,323 $ 93,551

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 and 2010, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, follows:

Less Than Over
Twelve Months Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Values Losses Values

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2011
Debt Securities:
Government-sponsored enterprises ..................... $ 9 $ 13541 $ — $ —
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (concluded)

Less Than Over
Twelve Months Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Values Losses Values

(In Thousands)
December 31, 2010
Debt Securities:
Government-sponsored enterprises ..................... $ 38 $ 18,198 $ — $ —

At December 31, 2011, nine debt securities have unrealized losses with aggregate depreciation of less than 1% from
the Bank’s amortized cost basis. These unrealized losses relate to debt securities secured by Government-sponsored
enterprises and result from changes in the bond markets since their purchase. Because the decline in market value is
attributable to changes in interest rates and not the credit quality, and because the Bank does not intend to sell the securities
and it is more likely than not that the Bank will not be required to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized cost
bases, which may be maturity, the Bank does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2011.

4. LOANS

A summary of the balances of loans follows:

December 31,
2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Mortgage loans:

RESIAENIAl ...\ttt $ 381,272 $ 356,176
COMMEICHAL. ...t e e e e e e e e e e 404,343 383,361
(0] 015 1 1101 1 o] o I PP 42,269 29,065
Equity lines of Credit ......o.iie e e 22,867 23,688
SECONA MOITGAGES . vn v e eentee et een et e aet e e et e e e e eaeeen e e eaeaea e ean e ens 4,468 5,660
Total mortgage l0anS  .....ooovieie e e 855,219 797,950

Other loans:
LO0] 19111 =T 4 F- 1 459 298
Personal installment ... e s 375 464
RevolvINg Credit ..o 256 196
Total Other 08NS ......ei ittt e e e e e e e e e 1,090 958
TOtal J0ANS oo 856,309 798,908
Allowance for 10an 10SSES ... .vuiiriie it e e (7,516) (6,905)
Net deferred l10an origination COSES  .......oeie i e e 983 907
0 L o o 1Y $ 849,776 $ 792,910

The Bank has sold mortgage loans in the secondary mortgage market and has retained the servicing responsibility and
receives fees for the services provided. Loans sold and serviced for others amounted to $14,138,000 and $20,247,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. All loans serviced for others were sold without recourse provisions and are not
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. LOANS (continued)

The Bank has transferred a portion of its originated commercial real estate loans to participating lenders. The amounts
transferred have been accounted for as sales and are therefore not included in the Bank’s accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The Bank and participating lenders share ratably in any gains or losses that may result from a borrower’s
lack of compliance with contractual terms of the loan. The Bank continues to service the loans on behalf of the participating
lenders and, as such, collects cash payments from the borrowers, remits payments to participating lenders and disburses
required escrow funds to relevant parties. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Bank was servicing loans for participants

aggregating $5,390,000 and $5,482,000, respectively.

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses, by segment, follows:

Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction ~ Home Equity Commercial ~ Consumer Total
(In Thousands)
Allowance for loan losses:

Balance December 31, 2008 ...... $ 1,182 $ 2,964 $ 285 $ 98 $ — $ 1 $ 4,530
Provision for loan losses ...... 617 519 542 14 7 1 1,700
Loans charged-off ............ 42) (131) (449) — 4 1) (627)
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off ...... — 134 — — — — 134

Balance December 31, 2009 ...... 1,757 3,486 378 112 3 1 5,737
Provision for loan losses ...... 284 751 243 2 — 20 1,300
Loans charged-off ............ — (81) (40) — — (12) (133)
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off ...... — 1 — — — — 1

Balance December 31, 2010 ...... 2,041 4,157 581 114 3 9 6,905
Provision for loan losses ...... 614 505 (106) 90 (1) (2 1,100
Loans charged-off ............ (144) (380) — (77) @ — (602)
Recoveries of loans

previously charged off ...... 58 55 — — — — 113

Balance December 31, 2011 ...... $ 2,569 $ 4,337 $ 475 $ 127 $ 1 $ 7 $ 7,516

Further information pertaining to the allowance for loan losses follows:
Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction  Home Equity Commercial ~ Consumer Total
(In Thousands)
December 31, 2011
Amount of allowance for loan
losses for loans deemed to be
impaired and individually
evaluated .........oevvvvvevenn... $ 144 $ 67 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 211
Amount of allowance for loan
losses for loans not deemed to
be impaired and collectively
evaluated ............iiiieiiinn. 2,425 4,270 475 127 1 7 7,305
$ 2,569 $ 4,337 $ 475 $ 127 $ 1 $ 7 $ 7516
Loans deemed to be impaired...... $ 3,176 $ 3,502 $ — $ 306 $ — $  — $ 6,984
Loans not deemed to be impaired... 378,096 400,841 42,269 27,029 459 631 849,325
$ 381,272 $ 404,343 $ 42,269 $ 27,335 $ 459 $ 631 $ 856,309
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4. LOANS (continued)

Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction Home Equity Commercial Consumer Total
(In thousands)
December 31, 2010
Amount of allowance for loan
losses for loans deemed to be
impaired and individually
evaluated .............ocoveeennenn. $ 68 $ 77 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 145
Amount of allowance for loan
losses for loans not deemed to
be impaired and collectively
evaluated..........cocovvevvienntt. 1,973 4,080 581 114 3 9 6,760
$ 2,041 $ 4,157 $ 581 $ 114 $ 3 $ 9 $ 6,905
Loans deemed to be impaired ...... $ 2117 $ 3527 $ — $ 97 $ — $ 1 $ 5742
Loans not deemed to be impaired... 354,059 379,834 29,065 29,251 298 659 793,166
$ 356,176 $ 383,361 $ 29,065 $ 29,348 $ 298 $ 660 $ 798,908
The following is a summary of past due and non-accrual loans:
December 31, 2011
30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days or Total Loans on
Past Due Past Due More Past Due Past Due Non-accrual
(In Thousands)
Mortgage loans:
Residential real estate ............ $ 6,550 $ 711 $ 1,648 $ 8,909 $ 2,945
Commercial real estate............. 5,255 — 1,477 6,732 3,502
Homeequity ..............ccevvee. 888 75 134 1,097 306
CONSUMET . i eeee e 1 — — 1 —
Total 08NS ....oovvvveie e, $ 12,694 $ 786 $ 3,259 $ 16,739 $ 6,753
December 31, 2010
30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days or Total Loans on
Past Due Past Due More Past Due Past Due Non-accrual

Mortgage loans:
Residential real estate
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. LOANS (continued)

The following is a summary of impaired loans:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal
Investment Balance Allowance Investment
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. LOANS (continued)

The following is a summary of troubled debt restructurings for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Number of Unpaid Unpaid
Contracts Principal Balance Principal Balance
(In Thousands)
Residential mortgage ............ccovvvieiiieiiiiiiinnnn. 1 $ 231 $ 231
Commercial mortgage.......c.ccoveviierineciieene e, 1 503 503

A rate reduction of 2.25% for 15 years was granted on one residential real estate mortgage loan. The commercial
mortgage loan was modified as part of a bankruptcy settlement to combine three separate loans into a single note with
$67,000 being converted to unsecured debt. On both loans, management performed a discounted cash flow calculation to
determine the amount of impairment reserve required on each of the troubled debt restructurings. Any reserve required is
recorded through the provision for loan losses.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, neither of the two loans restructured in 2011 defaulted after restructuring.
However, one residential mortgage loan restructured in 2010 with an outstanding balance of $751,000 defaulted in 2011.

Credit Quality Information
The Bank uses a seven-grade internal rating system for commercial real estate, construction, commercial and
certain residential real estate loans as follows:

Loans rated 1-3B: Loansin this category are considered “pass’ rated with low to average risk.

Loans rated 4: Loans in this category are considered “specia mention.” These loans are currently protected, but exhibit
conditions that have the potential for weakness. The borrower may be affected by unfavorable economic, market or other
external conditions that may affect their ability to repay the debt. These may also include credits where there is
deterioration of the collateral or have deficiencies which may affect our ability to collect on the collateral.
Thisrating is consistent with the “ Other Assets Especially Mentioned” category used by the FDIC regulatory agency.

Loans rated 5: Loans in this category are considered “substandard.” Generaly, a loan is considered substandard if it is
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral pledged. There is a
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the weakness is not corrected.

Loans rated 6: Loans in this category are considered “doubtful.” Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses
inherent in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in
full, on the basis of currently existing facts, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans rated 7: Loans in this category are considered uncollectible (“loss’) and of such little value that their continuance as
loans is not warranted.

Loans are assigned an initial grade at the origination of the loan. After origination, the Bank has a quality control
program performed by an independent third-party. On a quarterly basis, all commercial and residential loan relationships
with individual loans $500,000 or more are assigned a risk rating. An in-depth review is performed on all relationships
totaling $850,000 or greater adong with loans on the Bank’s Watchlist. Watchlist loans are those loans that are more than
two payments past due at the end of the quarter, loans rated four or higher in a previous review, or loans past contractual
maturity. Results of the review are reported to the Bank’s Audit Committee on a quarterly basis and become the
mechanism for monitoring the overall credit quality of the portfolio.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. LOANS (concluded)

The following table presents the Bank’s loans by risk ratings as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction Commercial
(In Thousands)
$ 376,127 $ 400,169 $ 42,269 $ 459
3,794 2,960 — —
1,351 1,214 — —
$ 381,272 $ 404,343 $ 42,269 $ 459
December 31, 2010
Residential Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate Construction Commercial
(In Thousands)
$ 354,074 $ 376,648 $ 29,065 $ 298
975 1,877 — _
1,127 4,836 — _
$ 356,176 $ 383,361 $ 29,065 $ 298

For home equity and consumer loans management uses delinquency reports as the key credit quality indicator.

5. FORECLOSED ASSETS

A summary of foreclosed assets is as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
(In Thousands)
COMMETCIAI PrOPEITY .. ettt e e e e e e e et e et e e e $ 3,032 $ 2,790
ReSIAENtIAl PrOPEITY ..ot e e e e e e e e 597 769
$ 3,629 $ 3,559
Expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following:
December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)
Net (gain) loss on sales of real eState .............oceeveniiniiiiiiiiniiieiiinnins $ (1) $ (120) $ 66
Write-down of real eState ..........couieii i 238 46 100
Operating expenses, net of rental income ..o, 861 800 512

$ 1,038 $ 726 $ 678
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6. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment follows:

Premises:
Land

BUIAINGS. ..ot e e

Leasehold improvements

EQUIPMENT o e e e e
CONSLrUCTION 1N PrOGIESS. .. vuve et it ee et eet e e ree e

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ..................

December 31,

Estimated

2011 2010 Useful Life
(In Thousands)
$ 1,608 $ 1,608 N/A
10,277 5,605 3-65 years
802 329 10 years
4,225 3,401 3-25 years
— 2,962 N/A
16,912 13,905
(6,315) (5,920)
$ 10,597 $ 7,985

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 amounted to $531,000,

$443,000 and $480,000, respectively.

7. DEPOSITS

A summary of deposit balances, by type, is as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
(In Thousands)
REGUIAT ..t e e e e e $ 65261 $ 57,848
7 1o 1 - U G 256,971 239,909
N1 29,988 25,889
[0 1= 4 T 63,092 53,539
Total NON-CErtifiCate AaCCOUNTS ... vuie i it e e et e et e e e e e e eaaes 415,312 377,185
Term certificates less than $100,000 ........c.oovir i e e e 171,276 179,448
Term certificates of $100,000 OF MOTE ....ueiii ettt e e e e e e e ens 200,985 173,327
Total CertifiCate ACCOUNTS ... ...ttt ittt e e et et e et e e eae e eaeeaeens 372,261 352,775
B I 0 T o0 ] 1 PP $ 787,573 $ 729,960
The maturity distribution of term certificates is as follows:
December 31,
2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
Maturing Amount Average Rate Amount Average Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)

Withinone year...........occoevvviviieiiiinnnnn. $ 276,843 1.01 % $ 292,937 1.42%

OVEr 110 2 YEArS ...uvvvieineiee i ieiiiiieeeenes 1.37 47,386 1.83

OVEr 210 3YeArsS ....cuvvvieineineieiiiieiiene 1.90 7,197 2.67

OVEr 3104 Years .....c.eevvieeiniiiiininenns 2.24 2,751 2.89

OVer4t05Years ....coovvevveiieiiiieinnennns 2.66 2,504 2.46
$ 1.25% $ 352,775 1.52%
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7. DEPOSITS (concluded)
A summary of interest expense on deposits is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

(In Thousands)

REGUIAN et e e $ 126 $ 133 $ 117
MONEY MarKBL ..o e 1,516 2,240 2,132
N O e e e e 15 27 27
B0 T 07=1 €107 (=T 5,094 5,725 8,058

$ 6,751 $ 8125 $ 10,334

8. BORROWED FUNDS
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances
A summary of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston follows:

December 31,

2011 2010

Weighted Weighted

Maturing During the Year Average Average
Ending December 31, Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dollars in Thousands)

2000 e $ — — % $ 66,500 2.39 %
2002 e 105,000 0.47 14,000 2.19
2003 e 19,500 2.55 18,000 2.69
2004 e 65,000 3.09 63,000 3.13
2005 i 10,000 2.55 10,000 2.55
2016 ..t e 12,000 1.76 — —
Thereafter (1) .oovvveiie i 35,971 4.08 36,080 4.08

$ 247,471 1.99 % $ 207,580 293 %

(1) At December 31, 2011 and 2010, includes an amortizing advance with a balance of $971,000 and $1,080,000,
respectively, due in November 2018, requiring monthly principal and interest of $14,000.

All borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston are secured by a blanket lien on “qualified collateral”
defined principally as 60%-75% of the carrying value of first mortgage loans on certain owner-occupied residential
property, 50% of the carrying value of first mortgage loans on certain non-owner-occupied residential property, 65% of the
carrying value of first mortgage loans on certain multi-family residential property and 50% of the carrying value of loans on
certain commercial property. In addition, 90% of the fair value of certain government-sponsored enterprise debt and
mortgage-backed securities held in Hingham Securities Corporation Il with a fair value of $93,551,000 and $92,027,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are used as collateral.

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because certain borrowings, aggregating $29.0 million at
December 31, 2011, can be called by the FHLB after an initial specified term.
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8. BORROWED FUNDS (concluded)

Available Lines of Credit

The Bank has an available line of credit with the FHLB at an interest rate that adjusts daily. Borrowings under this line
are limited to $4,633,000 at December 31, 2011. No amounts were drawn on the line of credit as of December 31, 2011 and
2010. Additionally, the Bank has registered with the Federal Reserve Bank to access the discount window. The Bank may
access this line by assigning assets as collateral.

Mortgage Payable

The balance represents a loan payable by the Bank for the purchase from an unrelated party of property which was
used for a new branch office. The note is secured by the real estate and bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.00%. Principal and
interest is payable in 240 monthly installments. As of December 31, 2011, future principal payments amounted to $42,000,
$45,000, $48,000, $50,000, $54,000 and $868,000, for the years ending December 31, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and,
thereafter, respectively.

9. INCOME TAXES
Allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred portions is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Current tax provision:

Federal .ot $ 6,942 $ 5,854 $ 4,311
)7 =P 1,979 1,668 1,239
8,921 7,522 5,550

Deferred tax benefit:
Federal oo (510) (542) (350)
) 7 - PP (138) (132) (109)
(648) (674) (459)

$ 8,273 $ 6,848 $ 5,001

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rates and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)
SEATULOIY FALE ..ttt et e et et e e e e et e e s 35.0 % 35.0 % 34.0 %
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit ... 5.9 5.9 5.7
Bank-owned life iNSUraNCe ..........cooeiiiiiiii i (0.8) (0.8) (0.9)
(@] 115 o T P 0.6 — —
EffECtiVETale ..ot e 40.7 % 40.1 % 38.8 %
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9. INCOME TAXES (concluded)

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
(In Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
=T [=T | $ 3,231 $ 2,731
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding commitments and contingencies which are not reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Loan commitments

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include unused lines of credit, commitments to originate
loans, and standby letters of credit. The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to its financial instruments is
represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the following financial instruments were outstanding for which contract amounts
represent credit risk:

December 31,

2011 2010
(In Thousands)

Unused 1iNes Of Credit ... ..ivviie it e e e e e e e et eaaens $ 56,455 $ 45,512
Commitments to originate loans:

Commercial MOMQGAGES ... v.eine et et et et e e e e e e e e e e et et e e e n e aas 26,079 11,550

Residential MOMQAgES ...ovoiv it e e e e e e e e 32,504 21,817
Unadvanced funds on construction [0aNS — ..........couiiin it e e e 13,695 8,996
Standby letters Of Credit ... e 10 135

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a
case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based
on management's credit evaluation of the borrower. The commitments to originate loans, unadvanced construction funds,
and the majority of unused lines of credit are secured by real estate.

Standby letters-of-credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer
to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. All
letters of credit issued have expiration dates within five years. The credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank generally holds collateral
supporting those commitments.

Employment agreements

The Bank has entered into employment agreements with certain senior executives. The original terms of the
agreements are for two or three years and can generally be extended for one-year periods. The agreements generally
provide for certain lump sum severance payments under certain circumstances, within a one-year period following a
“change in control,” as defined in the agreements. Two of these agreements provide for certain death benefits, which are
being accrued ratably over the employees’ remaining service period. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, expenses attributable to the agreements amounted to $69,000, $288,000 and $421,000, respectively.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (concluded)

Lease commitments
Pursuant to the terms of noncancelable lease agreements in effect at December 31, 2011, pertaining to premises and
equipment, future minimum rent commitments under various operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, Amount
(In Thousands)
2012 $ 274
2013 281
2014 265
2015 204
2016 125
Thereafter 426
Total $1,575

Lease commitments are based on the initial contract term, or longer, when in the opinion of management it is more
likely than not that the lease will be renewed. Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
amounted to $270,000, $178,000 and $178,000, respectively.

Legal claims
Legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which, in the opinion of management, will have
no material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.

11. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements. FDIC-
insured depository institutions are prohibited from paying dividends or making capital distributions that would cause the
institution to fail to meet minimum capital requirements or if it is already undercapitalized. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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11. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (concluded)

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in
the following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed the
Bank’s category. The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are also presented in the
table.

Minimum To Be Well

Minimum Capitalized Under

Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Requirement Actions Provisions
Amounts Ratio Amounts Ratio Amounts Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)
December 31, 2011

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets ......... $ 89,608 1355 % $ 52,903 8.0 % $ 66,129 100 %
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets......... 82,030 12.40 26,452 4.0 39,677 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets ............... 82,030 7.47 43,926 4.0 54,907 5.0
December 31, 2010

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets ......... $ 79,465 12.72 % $ 49,994 8.0 % $ 62,493 100 %
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets......... 72,540 11.61 24,997 4.0 37,496 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets ............... 72,540 7.18 40,389 4.0 50,487 5.0

12. STOCK OPTION PLANS

Under the Bank's 1988 and 1996 stock option plans, options may be granted to officers, other employees, and certain
directors as the Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors may determine. A total of 187,500 shares of common
stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the 1988 plan and a total of 90,000 shares of common stock were reserved for
issuance pursuant to the 1996 plan. Both "incentive options" and "non-qualified options" could be granted under the plans.
All options under both plans will have an exercise price per share equal to, or in excess of, the fair market value of a share
of common stock at the date the option is granted, will have a maximum option term of 10 years and are fully vested
immediately upon issuance. At December 31, 2011, there were 3,000 non-qualified shares remaining available for future
issuance under the 1996 plan and no shares remaining under the 1988 plan.

Stock option activity is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Shares under option:
Outstanding at beginning of year ...... 6,500 $ 32.89 5,000 $ 31.96 7,500 $ 2631
Granted ......ooiiiiie 4,500 51.95 1,500 36.00 — —
EXercised.......c.ocvviiiiiiiiiiea, (1,500) 29.54 — — (2,500) 15.00
Outstanding at end of year ............ 9,500 $ 4245 6,500 $ 32.89 5,000 $ 3196
Options exercisable at end of year ......... 9500 $ 4245 6500 $ 3289 5000 $ 31.96

54



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCK OPTION PLANS (concluded)
As of December 31, 2011, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding amounted to $70,000.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2009 was $26,000 and
$28,000, respectively. There were no options exercised in the year ended December 31, 2010.

Options outstanding consist of the following:

December 31,

2011 2010
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Remaining
Contractual Life in Contractual Life in
Shares Years Shares Years
Option price
$35.25 it 2,000 5 2,000 6
30.00 .o, 1,500 7 1,500 8
2954 — — 1,500 1
36.00 ..o 1,500 8 1,500 9
5195 i e 4,500 9 — —
9,500 6,500

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with
the following weighted average assumptions. There were no options granted in 2009.

2011 2010
Expected dividends 2.3% 3.1%
Expected term 5 years 5 years
Expected volatility 17% 14%
Risk-free interest rate 2.25% 2.49%

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility. The risk-free interest rates for periods within the contractual
life of the awards are based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The expected term is based
on historical exercise experience. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Bank's history and expectation of dividend
payouts.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
was $6.72 and $3.37, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, share-based compensation expense applicable to the plan amounted
to $30,000 and $5,000 and the recognized tax benefit related to this expense amounted to $12,000 and $2,000, respectively.
There was no share-based compensation expense in 2009 as there were no options granted.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank has a policy providing that loans (excluding passbook loans) will not be granted to directors, officers and
other employees of the Bank. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, legal fees paid by the Bank to a
law firm owned by certain directors of the Bank amounted to $484,000, $434,000 and 431,000, respectively. Such fees
related to representation of the Bank with foreclosure and collection actions, loan closing costs borne by the Bank and
certain other routine legal matters. The Bank believes that the foregoing sums have been reasonable in relation to the
services provided to the Bank.
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401(k) Plan

The Bank has a 401(k) plan whereby each employee, having completed at least three months of continuous service
beginning with date of employment, becomes a participant in the plan. Employees may contribute a percentage of their
compensation subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. The Bank contributes 3% of an employee’s compensation,
regardless of the employee's contribution and makes a matching contribution of $0.50 for each dollar contributed by the
employee up to a maximum matching contribution equal to 3% of the employee’'s yearly compensation. Matching
contributions vest to the employee after two years, or at age 59%, if earlier. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, expense attributable to the plan amounted to $303,000, $290,000 and $261,000, respectively.

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plans

The Bank has supplemental employee retirement plans which were established in 2002 for the benefit of certain senior
executives. In connection with these plans, the Bank purchased life insurance policies amounting to $10,109,000 and
contributed them to a Rabbi Trust. The value of these policies is $14,524,000 and $14,074,000 at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. In accordance with the agreements, a secular trust was established for each executive into which the
Bank makes annual contributions which become the property of the executive. Expense related to these plans amounted to
$604,000, $604,000 and $595,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

15. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Determination of Fair Value

The Bank uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is
best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the
Bank’s various financia instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions
used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be
realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair value disclosures:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts of cash, due from banks, interest-bearing deposits and short-term
investments approximate fair values based on the short-term nature of the assets.

Certificates of deposit: Fair values for certificates of deposit are based upon quoted market prices.

Securities available for sale: The securities measured at fair value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an
active exchange market and generally include marketable equity securities. Securities measured at fair value in Level 2 are
based on pricing models that consider standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate
volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, credit spreads and new issue data. These securities include government-sponsored
enterprise obligations, FHLMC and FNMA bonds, corporate bonds and other securities. At December 31, 2011 and 2010,
all fair value measurements are obtained from a third-party pricing service and are not adjusted by management.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock: The carrying value of Federal Home Loan Bank stock is deemed to approximate fair
value based on the redemption provisions of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston.

Loans: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based
on carrying values. Fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, using market interest rates
currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for non-performing
loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values, where applicable.
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15. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Deposits: The fair values of non-certificate accounts are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date which is their carrying amount. Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies market interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated
expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Federal Home Loan Bank advances: The fair values of the advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
based on the current incremental borrowing rates in the market for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Mortgage payable: The fair value of the Bank’s mortgage payable is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
based on the current incremental borrowing rates in the market for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Mortgagors' escrow accounts: The carrying amounts of mortgagors' escrow accounts approximate fair value.

Accrued interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

Off-balance-sheet instruments: Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties
credit standing. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of commitments outstanding is not significant since fees
charged are not material.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below. There are no liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis.

December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
(In Thousands)

Securities available for sale:

Debt SECUritieS ....ovvveiviii i, $ — $ 93,551 $ — $ 93,551
Equity securities ..........cooieiiiiiiiiiiinnns 3,138 — — 3,138
Total securities available for sale ............... $ 3,138 $ 93,551 $ — $ 96,689

December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
(In Thousands)

Securities available for sale:

Debt SECUMTIES  ..vvvevveve e eeee e $ — $ 92,027 $ — $ 92,027
Equity securities  .........oociiiiiiii i, 3,044 — — 3,044
Total securities available for sale ................ $ 3,044 $ 92,027 $ — $ 95,071
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15. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (concluded)

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

The Bank may also be required, from time to time, to measure certain other assets on a non-recurring basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These adjustments to fair value usually result from application of
lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. The following table summarizes the fair value
hierarchy used to determine each adjustme
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16. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income ...................cooe e $ 12,231 $ 12,201 $ 12,089 $ 11,923
INTErest EXPENSE ....vvvt et 2,912 3,171 3,268 3,267
Net interest inCoOme ........oooviiiii e, 9,319 9,030 8,821 8,656
Provision for [0an 10SSeS ..........cooeiiiiiii i 225 275 300 300
Net interest income, after provision for loan losses ...... 9,094 8,755 8,521 8,356
Other iNCOME ...vvie i e e e e 446 422 421 411
Operating EXPENSES ... ..vvieeee e e v e e e e e eaeean e 4,285 3,936 3,959 3,911
Income before income taxes ........ccoveeiiiiiiiiiiiinn. 5,255 5,241 4,983 4,856
Income tax ProviSion ..........ccooviiiiiiiiii i e 2,148 2,133 2,016 1,976
NEEINCOME ...vnieiie et e e e, $ 3,107 $ 3,108 $ 2,967 $ 2,880
Earnings per common share:
BaSiC (1) cevvreiriie i e $ 1.46 $ 1.46 $ 1.40 $ 1.36
Diluted (1) ... ve e e e e $ 1.46 $ 1.46 $ 1.40 $ 1.35
Cash dividends declared per common share ............... $ 051 @ $ 0.25 $ 0.25 $ 0.24
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income ................cccoieiin. $ 11,965 $ 11,898 $ 11,502 $ 11,460
INtEreSt EXPENSE ... .vve et e e e 3,567 3,724 3,812 3,995
Net interest inCoOmMe ..o, 8,398 8,174 7,690 7,465
Provision for [0an 10SSeS .........ccoveiiiiiii i 300 300 300 400
Net interest income, after provision for loan losses ...... 8,098 7,874 7,390 7,065
Otherincome ..ot e, 463 407 380 377
Operating EXPENSES .....vvieiee e e veeie et e e e aaeean e 3,846 3,693 3,792 3,647
Income before income taxes ........ccccveeviiiiiiiiiininnn. 4,715 4,588 3,978 3,795
Income tax ProviSion ..........covoviiiiiiiiii e e, 2,017 1,794 1,557 1,480
NEtINCOME ..ot e e $ 2,698 $ 2,794 $ 2421 $ 2,315
Earnings per common share:
BaSIC (1) cereeniniie et et e e e $ 1.27 $ 1.32 $ 1.14 $ 1.09
Diluted (1) ... ve e e e e e $ 1.27 $ 1.32 $ 1.14 $ 1.09
Cash dividends declared per common share ............... $ 049 ® ¢ 0.24 $ 0.23 $ 0.23

(1) The total of the four quarters’ earnings per share does not agree to the year-to-date earnings per share due to
rounding.

(2) Includes a special dividend of $0.26 per common share declared on November 23, 2011.

(3) Includes a special dividend of $0.25 per common share declared on November 19, 2010.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The chart which appears below sets forth the percentage change, on an annual basis, in the cumulative total return on the Bank’s
Common Stock since December 31, 2006 through December 31, 2011. For comparative purposes, changes in the cumulative total
return on the three indices of publicly traded stocks (the “Indices”) are also set forth on the chart.

The NASDAQ Composite Index reflects the total return of a group of stocks in a cross section of industries. Many of these stocks
have substantially larger market capitalizations than the Bank. The SNL Bank and Thrift Index tracks a national group of publicly
traded bank and thrift institutions.

The final Index, SNL New England Thrift Index, tracks a peer group of all publicly traded thrift institutions located in New
England. SNL Securities is a research and publishing firm specializing in the collection and dissemination of data on the banking,
thrift, and financial services industries.

The chart begins with an equal base value of $100 for the Bank’s stock and for each of the Indices on December 31, 2006 and
reflects year-end closing prices and dividends paid thereafter by the Bank and by the companies which comprise the Indices. The
chart assumes full reinvestment of such dividends.

Information about the Indices has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but neither the accuracy nor the
completeness of such information is guaranteed by the Bank.

Hingham Institution for Savings

Total Return Performance

200
—&— Hingham Institution for Savings
—&— NASDAQ Composite
—a&— SNL New England Thrift

150 —e— SNL Bank and Thrift

100

Index Value

>0 e o/.\.

0 1 ‘ ‘ ‘
12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11
PERIOD ENDING
INDEX 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11
Hingham Institution for Savings 100.00 89.12 78.16 99.31 148.86 164.05
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 110.66 66.42 96.54 114.06 113.16
SNL New England Thrift Index 100.00 82.86 87.21 82.98 85.05 84.22
SNL Bank and Thrift 100.00 76.26 43.85 43.27 48.30 37.56
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Hingham Institution for Savings
55 Main Street

Hingham, MA 02043

(781) 749-2200

President and Chief
Executive Officer
Robert H. Gaughen, Jr.

Investor Inquiries
William M. Donovan, Jr.
Vice President —Administration

TransferAgent and Registrar
Computershare
480Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07310

(800) 288-9541

Online Registered Shareholder Access
www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/equityaccess

Stockholder Inquiries
Computershare

For Hingham Institution for Savings
P.O. Box 358015

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8015

(800) 288-9541

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Wolf & Company, P.C.

99 High Street

Boston, MA 02110

Special Counsel
WilmerHale

60 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

Form 10-K

A copy of the Bank’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, as filed with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, may be obtained
without charge by any stockholder of the Bank upon
written request addressed to the Investor Relations
Department.

STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Stock Data

Hingham Institution for Savings' common shares are listed
and traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the
symbol HIFS.

As of December 31, 2011, there were approximately 365
stockholders of record, holding 748,530 outstanding
shares of common stock. These shares do not include the
number of persons who hold their shares in nominee or
street name through various brokerage firms.

The following table presents the quarterly high and low
bid prices for the Bank’s common stock reported by
NASDAQ.

High Low
2010
First Quarter $34.70 $30.32
Second Quarter 38.05 33.86
Third Quarter 41.50 35.02
Fourth Quarter 45.00 37.08
2011
First Quarter $51.51 $42.80
Second Quarter 53.00 44,77
Third Quarter 57.50 45.75
Fourth Quarter 50.00 46.15

The closing sde price of the Bank’s common stock at
December 31, 2011 was $47.80 per share.
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Boston, MA 02114

SOuTH END NORWELL/HANOVER

540 Tremont Street 5 Assinippi Avenue

Boston, MA 02116 Hanover, MA 02339
COHASSET SCITUATE

13 Elm Street 400 Gannett Road

Cohasset, MA 02025 North Scituate, MA 02066
HINGHAM SOUTH WEYMOUTH

Main Office 32 Pleasant Street

55 Main Street South Weymouth, MA 02190

Hingham, MA 02043

Loan Center
49 Main Street
Hingham, MA 02043

Drive-Up
71 Main Street
Hingham, MA 02043

SoUuTH HINGHAM
37 Whiting Street
Hingham, MA 02043

LINDEN PONDS

300 Linden Ponds Way
Hingham, MA 02043
(serving Linden Ponds residents
and employees)

e

HINGHAM

J.""I.‘l UL T HN I‘"E'I‘II':
SAVINGS

— EETARL D e —

55 Main Street, Hingham, MA 02043
Tel: 781-749-2200 Fax: 781-740-4889

www.hinghamsavings. com

=
Member FDIC/Member DIF  Equal Housing Lender



	12-2478 HIS Cvr_a
	12-2478 HIS Cvr_b
	12-2478 HIS_text1_b
	Reduced Text HIS_c
	12-2478 Financial_ 1
	12-2478 Financial_ 2
	12-2478 Financial_ 3
	12-2478 Financial_ 4
	12-2478 Financial_ 5
	12-2478 Financial_ 6
	12-2478 Financial_ 7
	12-2478 Financial_ 8
	12-2478 Financial_ 9
	12-2478 Financial_10
	12-2478 Financial_11
	12-2478 Financial_12
	12-2478 Financial_13
	12-2478 Financial_14
	12-2478 Financial_15
	12-2478 Financial_16
	12-2478 Financial_17
	12-2478 Financial_18
	12-2478 Financial_19
	12-2478 Financial_20
	12-2478 Financial_21
	12-2478 Financial_22
	12-2478 Financial_23
	12-2478 Financial_24
	12-2478 Financial_25
	12-2478 Financial_26
	12-2478 Financial_27
	12-2478 Financial_28
	12-2478 Financial_29
	12-2478 Financial_30
	12-2478 Financial_31
	12-2478 Financial_32
	12-2478 Financial_33
	12-2478 Financial_34
	12-2478 Financial_35
	12-2478 Financial_36
	12-2478 Financial_37
	12-2478 Financial_38
	12-2478 Financial_39
	12-2478 Financial_40
	12-2478 Financial_41
	12-2478 Financial_42
	12-2478 Financial_43
	12-2478 Financial_44
	12-2478 Financial_45
	12-2478 Financial_46
	12-2478 Financial_47
	12-2478 Financial_48

	blank

